
 
MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 7, 2025 MEETING OF THE TOWN BOARD OF THE TOWN OF 
POUND RIDGE HELD AT 179 WESTCHESTER AVENUE, POUND RIDGE, NEW YORK, AND 
VIA ZOOM VIDEOCONFERENCE, COMMENCING AT 7:30 PM 
 
 

 

 

PRESENT: SUPERVISOR KEVIN HANSAN  
DEPUTY SUPERVISOR/COUNCILPERSON DIANE BRIGGS  
COUNCILPERSON NAMASHA SCHELLING   
COUNCILPSERSON DANIEL PASCHKES 

ALSO 
PRESENT: TOWN ATTORNEY WILLIAM HARRINGTON (after 8:23 pm) 

TOWN CLERK ERIN TROSTLE   
NOT 
PRESENT: COUNCILPERSON ALISON BOAK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER OF REGULAR MEETING  

Supervisor Hansan called the meeting to order at 7:33 pm. 
 
 

II. CALL FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION  
Board Action:  Motion by Councilperson Paschkes, seconded by Councilperson Schelling, 
all voting aye, to call for an executive session at 6:30 pm on Tuesday, October 21, 2025. 
 
 
III. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

• The twelfth semi-annual Repair Café returns to Conant Hall on Saturday, October 18, 
hosted by the Pound Ridge Conservation Board. 

• Hope’s Door encourages support for survivors in recognition of Domestic Violence 
Awareness Month.  Information about ways to get involved is available at 
hopesdoorny.org. 

• Volunteers are needed for the Senior Halloween Luncheon.  Please contact the 
Recreation Department for more information. 

• The Town of Pound Ridge is seeking an enthusiastic and experienced individual to 
lead Teen Travel Camp for the 2026 season. 

• In observance of Indigenous Peoples’ Day, the Recycling Center will be closed on 
Saturday, October 11, and the Town House will be closed on Monday, October 13. 
 

IV. MINUTES 
Board Action:  Motion by Councilperson Briggs, seconded by Councilperson Schelling, all 
voting aye, to approve the minutes of the July 1, 2025 Town Board meeting. 



Page 2 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE TOWN BOARD 
TOWN OF POUND RIDGE 
POUND RIDGE, NY 
October 7, 2025 
 
 

 

 

 
V. PUBLIC COMMENT I 

• Resident John Nathan, of 155 Upper Shad Road, stated that he believed the 
Town Board had failed to comply with the Open Meetings Law. 

• Resident Katherine Biagiarelli, of 315 Salem Road, asked for information 
regarding the status of the grant-funded community bus. 

• Resident Adam Dornblum, of 5 Bedford Road, expressed support for the board. 

• Resident Nick Cianciola Sr., of 29 Autumn Ridge Road, expressed support for the 
outgoing Assessor. 

 
 
VI. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Town Board 
1. Modification to Assessor position and appointment of Joseph Calandrella 

 
Mr. Nathan again stated that he believed the Town Board had failed to comply with 
the Open Meetings Law and said he hoped another resident would file a lawsuit 
against the board.   
 
Councilperson Paschkes said he hopes no one will commence further legal action at 
the expense of the taxpayers. 
 
Supervisor Hansan pointed out that references to “discussion” does not necessarily 
mean discussion among a quorum of Town Board members.  He also explained how 
the role of the Assessment Clerk will evolve. 
 
Councilperson Paschkes noted that there was a vote was taken on the record during 
the September 25, 2025 executive session to appoint a new Assessor and that there 
are minutes documenting that vote.  

 
RESOLUTION 209-25 
Board Action:  Motion by Councilperson  Paschkes, seconded by Councilperson Briggs, 
all voting aye on the following: 
 

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby approves a modification of the Assessor 
position such that shall be a part-time position, to be conducted in part on site and 
in part remotely. 

 



Page 3 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE TOWN BOARD 
TOWN OF POUND RIDGE 
POUND RIDGE, NY 
October 7, 2025 
 
 

 

 

RESOLUTION 210-25 
Board Action:  Motion by Councilperson  Paschkes, seconded by Councilperson Briggs, 
all voting aye on the following: 
 

RESOLVED, that the Town Board appoints Joseph Calandrella to the part-time 
position of Assessor for a term of one year. 

 

Mr. Calandrella said he hopes that updates he plans to make in the Assessor’s Office, 
such as increasing access to information through digitizing, will benefit residents.  He 
also said he would be available to meet with seniors regarding exemptions, including 
in their homes if they are unable to come to the Town House. 

Resident Catherine Nathan, of 155 Upper Shad Road, stated that she believed 
discussion regarding the appointment of the new Assessor should have happened in 
public. 

 
 

2. AAA Contracting & Rubbish Removal contract 
Resident Jared Silbersher, of 22 Sherwood Road, stated that he was unaware of the 
town’s plans for rubbish removal at his property until receiving a communication 
from the Town Attorney approximately a week earlier.  He asked for additional time 
to clean up his property.   
 
[The Town Attorney entered the meeting at approximately 8:23 pm.] 
 
The matter of the contract with AAA Contracting and Rubbish Removal was tabled 
and will be revisited at the October 21 meeting. 
 
 
3. Amendment to special use permit for AT&T wireless communications facility at 

29 Adams Lane 
RESOLUTION 211-25 
Board Action:  Motion by Councilperson Briggs, seconded by Councilperson Schelling, all 
voting aye on the following: 
 

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby approves the application by AT&T for an 
amendment to its special use permit for the wireless communications facility located 
at 29 Adams Lane. 

 



Page 4 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE TOWN BOARD 
TOWN OF POUND RIDGE 
POUND RIDGE, NY 
October 7, 2025 
 
 

 

 

 
4. Application from T-Mobile for amendment to special use permit for 

wireless communications facility at 89 Westchester Avenue 
RESOLUTION 212-25 
Board Action:  Motion by Councilperson Paschkes, seconded by Councilperson Briggs, all 
voting aye on the following: 
 

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby refers the application from T-Mobile 
for an amendment to its special use permit for the existing wireless 
communications facility at 89 Westchester Avenue to the Planning Board for 
its review and recommendation. 
 
A representative from T-Mobile explained that the company has applied for 
an amendment to its existing special use permit so that it can perform 
equipment upgrades that will improve coverage. 

 

5. Agreement with Westchester Power 
RESOLUTION 213-25 
Board Action:  Motion by Councilperson Paschkes, seconded by Councilperson Schelling, 
all voting aye on the following: 

 

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby authorizes the Supervisor to sign the 2025 
Community Choice Aggregation (CCA) Municipality agreement with Westchester 
Power. 
 
 

B. Supervisor – 2026 Fireworks vendor 
RESOLUTION 214-25 
Board Action:  Motion by Councilperson Paschkes, seconded by Councilperson Briggs, all 
voting aye on the following: 
 

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby accepts the proposal dated October 6, 2025 
from July 4 Ever Fireworks Inc. to provide a fireworks display at the town’s July 4 
celebration on Saturday, July 4, 2026, at a cost of $39,900.00 AND BE IT FURTHER  
 
RESOLVED that the Town Board authorizes the Supervisor to sign the contract with 
July 4 Ever Fireworks Inc., subject to satisfactory review of the contract by the Town 
Attorney. 
 
 



Page 5 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE TOWN BOARD 
TOWN OF POUND RIDGE 
POUND RIDGE, NY 
October 7, 2025 
 
 

 

 

C. Town Clerk – Hope’s Door Pop-up Yoga Class 
RESOLUTION 215-25 
Board Action:  Motion by Councilperson Briggs, seconded by Councilperson Schelling, all 
voting aye on the following: 
 

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby approves a special event permit for Hope’s 
Door for a pop-up yoga class to be held at the Village Green on October 12 in 
conjunction with Domestic Violence Awareness month. 

 
 

D. Recreation Department 
1. Purchase of picnic tables 

RESOLUTION 216-25 
Board Action:  Motion by Councilperson Briggs, seconded by Councilperson Paschkes, all 
voting aye on the following: 
 

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby approves the expenditure, as budgeted, of 
$2,827.16 for the purchase of two picnic tables from Uline, to be funded from 
budget line 7140.0201. 

 
 

2. Purchase of lawn chairs 
RESOLUTION 217-25 
Board Action:  Motion by Councilperson Paschkes, seconded by Councilperson Briggs, all 
voting aye on the following: 
 

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby approves the expenditure, as budgeted, of 
$3,850.92 for the purchase of sixteen (16) pool lawn chairs from Furniture Leisure, 
to be funded from budget line 7140.0201. 
 

 
E. Town Clerk 

1. Sale of cemetery plot 
RESOLUTION 218-25 
Board Action:  Motion by Councilperson Briggs, seconded by Councilperson Schelling, all 
voting aye on the following: 
 

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby approves the sale of Plot 113-A in Section 3 
of the Pound Ridge Cemetery to Alan and Carol Alterman, of 72 Eastwoods Road, at 
a price of $1,000.00. 

 



Page 6 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE TOWN BOARD 
TOWN OF POUND RIDGE 
POUND RIDGE, NY 
October 7, 2025 
 
 

 

 

2. Award of 2025-26 fuel oil bid 
RESOLUTION 219-25 
Board Action:  Motion by Councilperson Paschkes, seconded by Councilperson Briggs, all 
voting aye on the following: 
 

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby awards the fuel oil bid for the 2025-26 
heating season to Marshall Oil at a rate of $0.03/gallon BELOW the Low New York 
Harbor Barge Reseller’s Price and at annual service contract rates of $100.00 per 
boiler and $50.00 per hot water heater. 

 
 

F. Landmarks and Historic District Commission – Resignation of Craig Padawer 
RESOLUTION 220-25 
Board Action:  Motion by Councilperson Paschkes, seconded by Councilperson Briggs, all 
voting aye on the following: 
 

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby accepts the resignation of Craig Padawer as 
a member of the Landmarks and Historic District Commission. 
 

 
G. Hope’s Door – Domestic Violence Awareness Month signs 

RESOLUTION 221-25 
Board Action:  Motion by Councilperson Briggs, seconded by Councilperson Schelling, all 
voting aye on the following: 
 

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby approves a request from Hope’s Door to 
post signs during October of 2025 in recognition of Domestic Violence Awareness 
Month. 

 
 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT II 
Ms. Nathan asked about a sign near Breads ‘n’ Bakes, and it was determined that the sign 
should have been removed after the Labor Day Artisan & Vintage Flea Market. 
 
 
V. FINANCIAL MATTERS – Pay bills 
RESOLUTION 222-25 
Board Action:  Motion by Councilperson Paschkes seconded by Councilperson Briggs, 
the motion passing 3–0 with Councilperson Schelling abstaining, on the following: 
 



Page 7 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE TOWN BOARD 
TOWN OF POUND RIDGE 
POUND RIDGE, NY 
October 7, 2025 
 
 

 

 

RESOLVED, that the Town Board hereby authorizes the Supervisor to pay the 
following claims as detailed in Abstract 19-2024: 
 

 

Fund  Claim Numbers Total Amount 

General Fund A00908–A00959 $106,343.03 

Highway Fund D00219–D00231 $535,105.13 

Trust & Agency Fund AT000XX $5,797.50 
 

 
 
VI. OLD BUSINESS – Simons vs. NYS EFC et al. 
 
The Town Attorney explained that the motions by the town and the state to dismiss the 
lawsuit were granted.  He noted that the petitioner may choose to file a notice of 
appeal.   
 
 
 
VII. ADJOURNMENT:  There being no further business to come before the Town Board, 

Supervisor Hansan adjourned the meeting at 8:53 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Erin Trostle, Town Clerk 
Dated at Pound Ridge, New York 
October 20, 2025 

































































































Town Clerk’s Office 

 

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To: Town Board 

From: Erin Trostle 

Cc: Vinnie Duffield 

Date: October 16, 2025 

Re: Cemetery transactions 

 

Please authorize the following cemetery plot repurchase: 
 

Name Address Plot Price 
Nancy Finne 48 Pound Ridge Road 85-B, Section 2 $75 

Pound Ridge, NY 10576 (1 gravesite) 
 

Please authorize the following cemetery plot sales: 
 
 Name Address Plot Price 
 Judith Storey 86 Fancher Road 85-B, Section 2 $1,000 
  Pound Ridge, NY 10576 (1 gravesite) 
 
 Laura Brown 110 Oakridge Drive 213-B, Section 3 $1,000 
 (former resident) South Salem, NY 10590 
 



Town Clerk’s Office 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
To: Town Board 

From: Josh Hayes 

Cc: Vinnie Duffield 

Date: October 17, 2025 

Re: Scotts Corners Parking District Paving Project 

 
We have received the following bids for the Town of Pound Ridge Scotts Corners Parking District 
Paving Project. 
 

VENDOR QUOTE 
K&P Asphalt, Inc. 
41 Fairmount Avenue 
Haverstraw, NY 10927 

$153,056 

ELQ Industries 
567 Fifth Avenue 
New Rochelle, NY 10801 

$249,462 

Avello Asphalt & Construction 
Corp. 
141 Daley Road 
Poughkeepsie, NY 12603 

$249,942 

Kect Construction Corp. 
PO Box 201 
Patterson, NY 12563 

$268,450 

J.S.K. Construction Corp. 
430 West Merrick Road 
Valley Stream, NY 11580 

$371,158 

 
 



C] Pitingaro & Doetsch
� Consulting Engineers

20 Industrial Drive I Middletown, NY I 0941 
info@panddengineers.com 

p. (845) 703-8140

••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

October 21, 2025 

Kevin Hansan, Supervisor 
Town of Pound Ridge 
179 Westchester A venue 
Pound Ridge, NY 10576 

Subject: Recommendation of Award - Scotts Corners Parking District Paving Project 

Dear Supervisor Hansan: 

On October 16, 2025, the following bids were received for the above referenced project: 

CONTRACTOR 

K&P Asphalt, Inc. 

ELQ Industries 

Avello Asphalt & Construction Corp. 

Keet Construction Corp. 

J.S.K. Construction Corp. 

BID AMOUNT 

$153,056 

$249,462 

$249,942 

$268,450 

$371,158 

Our office has reviewed the proposals of all five respondents. Based on our review of these 
proposals, we recommend that the contract be awarded to K&P Asphalt, Inc., as the lowest 
responsible bidder, for $$153,056. 

If you have any questions regarding the above, please feel free to contact our office. 

g;
Y

Pdr 
Jason A. Pitingaro, PE 
President 

JAP/lk 

G:\Shared Drives\Engineering\Pound Ridge\257802 - Scotts Comers Parking District Paving\01 -Admin\Pound Ridge-K&P Asphalt Award Recommendation.Docx 

••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

panddengi neers.com u niting principle and design I 





































































































































































































Town Clerk’s Office 

 

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To: Town Board 

From: Erin Trostle 

Date: October 16, 2025 

Re: September monthly reports 

 

 
The following monthly reports have been filed in the Town Clerk’s office, where they are available 
for public inspection: 
 

• September 2025 Building Department report 
• September 2025 Receiver of Taxes report 
• September 2025 Town Clerk report 

 





TOWN OF POUND RIDGE
RECEIVER OF TAXES

September 1, 2025 to September 30, 2025

COLLECTION OPENING BASE BALANCE   COLLECTION   MEMO/   MISC    OVER/SHORT   CLOSING  
  CHK FEES    BALANCE  

School Taxes  2025-2025
Bedford Central 37,472,155.39$                  17,184,390.10$           20,287,765.29$            
Katonah-Lewisboro 2,280,130.81$                    958,503.88$                 1,321,626.93$              
Total School Taxes  18,142,893.98$           21,609,392.22$            
School Penalty  2025- 26 -$                                      

Town & County 2025 199,095.55$                       22,230.12$                   176,865.43$                  
Town & County Penalty 1,556.10$                     

Total Town, County, School, Pen 18,166,680.20$                          
           

Liens 503,278.37$                       -$                                  503,278.37$                  
Lien Interest          
Total Lien & Interest -$                                    

TOTALS Base & Interest Collected 18,166,680.20$           145.00$         6,812.10$          18,173,637.30$            
*no requests for refunds was made in September, requests will be submitted in October
*Returns & Bounces: $17,826.88, $7200.45, $15,866.12, $4081.65



ConservationA1255 Conservation 77.241
Marriage License Marriage Fee 52.503
Misc Fee Certified Copy 320.0032
One-day marriage officiant
license

marriage officiant license 25.001

$474.74Sub-Total:
Dumpster PermitA2130 Dumpster - pickup 75.001
recycling Dumpster paid by card 542.781

$617.78Sub-Total:
Sale of cemetery plot(s)A2190 Cemetery Plots 4,000.004

$4,000.00Sub-Total:
Rental FeesA2410 Rental Fee 500.001

$500.00Sub-Total:
Dog LicensingA2544 Female, Spayed 210.0021

Female, Unspayed 20.001
Male, Neutered 180.0018
Male, Unneutered 20.001

$430.00Sub-Total:
PermitsA2590 Filming Permit 500.001

Filming Permit Application 150.001
$650.00Sub-Total:

mulch delivery chargeD-2111 delivery charge 30.001
$30.00Sub-Total:

Rental DepositHOLD Rental Deposit 0.001
$0.00Sub-Total:

Local ShareFee Description QtyAccount DescriptionAccount#

Town Clerk Monthly Report Page
:

110/16/2025
September 01, 2025 - September 30, 2025

$6,702.52Total Local Shares Remitted:
NYS Ag. & Markets for Animal Population ProgramAmount paid to: 45.00
NYS Environmental ConservationAmount paid to: 1,311.76
Rental DepositAmount paid to: 500.00
State Health Dept.Amount paid to: 67.50

$1,924.26Total Non-Local Revenues:$8,626.78Total State, County & Local Revenues:
To the Supervisor:
        Pursuant to Section 27, Sub 1, of the Town Law, I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full and true statement of all fees and monies received by
me, Erin Trostle, Town Clerk, Town of Pound Ridge during the period stated above, in connection with my office, excepting only such fees and
monies, the application of which are otherwise provided for by law.

Supervisor Date Town Clerk Date



To: Pound Ridge Town Board 
From: Nicole Shaffer, Climate Smart Communities Task Force Chair 
Date: Oct 15, 2025 
RE: Climate Smart Communities Bronze Certification Sign 
 
 
 
The Town has recently been re-certified as a Bronze Climate Smart Community.  With the re-
certification, we were given two signs to post in town highlighting our Bronze Certification. The 
Climate Smart Communities Task Force would like to propose hanging one sign at the 
Townhouse and one sign in Scotts Corners. I’ve included a picture of the sign and photos of the 
general proposed locations.  
 

                                            
 

 OR  
 
 
Thank you, 
 
Nicole Shaffer 
Chair, Climate Smart Communities Task Force 



Kevin Ali Dan Diane Namasha Other
Boards & Commissions
Audit Bills X
Board of Assessment Review X
Board of Ethics X
Climate Smart Communities Task Force X
Conservation Board X
Economic Development Committee X
Energy Action Committee X
Highway & Maintenance X
Housing Board X
Human Rights Advisory Committee X
Landmarks & Historic District X
OEM X
Old Pound Road Committee X
Open Space X
Planning Board X
Police Department X
Recreation Commission X
Water Control Commission X
Zoning Board of Appeals X
Other
BCSDNY X
East of Hudson Watershed X
Environmental Initiatives Advisors Elyse/Bill Harding
Fire District X
Library Board X
New Dawn X
Sustainable Westchester X
THRIVE X
Water Wastewater Task Force X
WEMS Tom Mulcahy
Westchester County Shared Services X
Wireless Communication X


	Pound Ridge-KP Asphalt Award Recommendation.pdf
	DRAFT 10.07.2025 TB meeting minutes
	backup_for_10.21.25_tbm
	TB Liaisons.pdf
	Sheet1

	monthly reports.pdf
	Sept 25 reports.pdf
	Bldg Dept monthly report
	September 2025 Tax Receivers Report
	Sept monthly report.pdf

	ADP9176.tmp
	To:
	From:
	Cc:
	Date:
	Re:





